
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE 
COLORADO 

2450 E. Quincy Avenue                     Village Center 

Cherry Hills Village, CO  80113                     Telephone 303‐789‐2541 

www.cherryhillsvillage.com                                               FAX 303‐761‐9386 
 

Notice:  Agenda is subject to change. 

If you will need special assistance in order to attend any of the City’s public meetings, please notify the City of Cherry Hills Village at 303‐789‐2541, 48 hours in 

advance. 

 

City Council Agenda 
Tuesday, May 20, 2014 

 
6:00 p.m. – Study Session – Public Works Facility Review by Norris Design 

 

6:30 p.m. – Regular Meeting 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

2.  Roll Call of Members 

 

3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Update by CDOT Region Director Tony DeVito 

 

5.  Reports from Members of City Boards and Commissions 

 

6.  Audience Participation Period (limit 5 minutes per speaker) 

 

7.  Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes – May 6, 2014  

b. Resolution 5, Series 2014; Concerning the Appointment of Members to the Board of Adjustment and 

Appeals 

c. Resolution 6, Series 2014; Concerning the Appointment of Members to the Parks, Trails and Recreation 

Commission 

d. Resolution 7, Series 2014; Concerning the Appointment of Members to the Public Art Commission  

e. Resolution 8, Series 2014; Appointing Ford H. Wheatley as an Alternate Municipal Judge for the Cherry 

Hills Village Municipal Court and Approving a Professional Services Agreement for Such Services 

f. Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Englewood for Fleet Maintenance and Repair 

g. Contract for Services with PLM Asphalt and Concrete Inc. for the 2014 Street Improvement Asphalt 

Replacement Project 

h. Contract for Services with Thoutt Brothers Concrete Contractors Inc. for the 2014 Street Improvement 

Concrete Replacement Project 

 

8.  Items Removed From Consent Agenda 

 

9.  Unfinished Business 

a.  Continuation of Public Hearing – Major Event Permit, Floodplain Development Permit, and Temporary 

Wireless Communication Facilities for the BMW Golf Championship 

 

10.  New Business 

 

11.  Reports 

a.  Mayor 

b.  Members of City Council 

c.  City Manager and Staff 

  (i)  Department Monthly Reports 

(ii)  Unaudited Financial Statements 

(iii)  Update on Council Priorities 

(iv)  Public Works Department Annual Report 

d.  City Attorney 

 

12.  Adjournment 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

1 

Minutes of the 
City Council of the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 

Held on Tuesday, May 6, 2014 at 6:30 p.m. 
At the Village Center 

 
Mayor Doug Tisdale called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Doug Tisdale, Councilors Mark Griffin, Russell Stewart, Alex Brown, Scott 
Roswell, Klasina VanderWerf, and Katy Brown were present on silent roll call.  Also 
present were City Manager John Patterson, City Attorney Linda Michow, City Engineer 
Troy Carmann, Deputy City Manager and Public Works Director Jay Goldie, Finance 
Director Karen Proctor, Community Development Director Rob Zuccaro, Police Chief 
Michelle Tovrea, Human Resource Analyst Kathryn Barlow, Parks, Trails & Recreation 
Administrator Ryan Berninzoni, Public Works Project and Right-of-Way Manager Ralph 
Mason, and City Clerk Laura Smith. 
 
Absent:  none 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
William Seifert and Aydan Solomon (5th grade team), and Aiden Shipman, Zander 
Deicidue, Kylenna Lathram and Ben Chonchol (3rd grade team) from the Cherry Hills 
Village Elementary School Destination Imagination Teams that made it to Global Finals 
led the Council in the pledge of allegiance. 
 
The Destination Imagination teams explained to City Council that they would be 
participating in Global Finals and asked the City to fund a scholarship. They also 
notified Council that they were selling coupon books at Cherry Hills Village Elementary 
School to raise money for their trip to Global Finals. 
 
UPDATE BY RTD DIRECTOR KENT BAGLEY, DISTRICT H, REGARDING 
FASTRACKS, DENVER UNION STATION AND RELATED MATTERS 
 
CDOT Director Bagley reviewed the various lines associated with Fastracks and their 
projected completion dates. He gave a detailed presentation on the recently completed 
Denver Union Station renovations. 
 
Councilor A. Brown asked about intercity rail. 
 
CDOT Director Bagley replied that there was potential space for additional intercity rail 
lines at the new Denver Union Station. He added that CDOT was expanding their 
regional bus service to Fort Collins, Colorado Springs, and Glenwood Springs. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

2 

Councilor A. Brown noted that Denver Union Station was a good example of how a well-
written view preservation ordinance could work in conjunction with development and 
design. 
 
CDOT Director Bagley commented that this was an outstanding project and had been a 
collaboration between CDOT and DRGOG along with the entire metro region. 
 
Mayor Tisdale reminded Council of the gala and ribbon cutting for Denver Union Station 
that he would attend. He encouraged Council members to attend the ribbon cutting. 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION PERIOD 
 
Mark Van Loucks, 1515 E. Tufts Ave., noted that he had lived in the Village for 33 
years. He explained that on Sunday morning at 8:30 a.m. contractors came to his home 
to remove turf from the sides of his driveway instead of coming on Monday as they had 
been scheduled. He indicated that he and his wife did not hear the machinery but that 
his neighbor did and called the Police Department. He suggested that the Police 
Department implement a policy for complaints whereby residents are required to call 
their neighbors the first time as a courtesy to the neighbors, to the Police Department’s 
time, and to use of public funds. He also suggested that section 18-10-60(2) be 
amended to use the word “structures” instead of “areas”, and section 18-10-20 be 
amended to add the word “construction” to the word “landscaping”. 
 
MEMBERS OF CITY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 
There were no reports.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart moved, seconded by Councilor Griffin to approve the following 
items on the Consent Agenda: 
 

a. Approval of Minutes – April 15, 2014 
b. 2013 Audited Financial Statements 

 
 The motion carried unanimously. 
 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 
None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
None 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

3 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Public Hearing – Major Event Permit, Floodplain Development Permit, and Temporary 
Wireless Communication Facilities for the BMW Golf Championship 
 
Mayor Tisdale explained that he had been advised by Director Zuccaro that both staff 
and the applicant requested this matter be continued to the May 20th meeting so that all 
information could be presented at that time. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart moved, seconded by Councilor Griffin to continue the request 
by the Western Golf Association for Major Event Permit to host the 2014 BMW 
Championship to the May 20, 2014 City Council meeting at 6:30 p.m. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Public Hearing – Special Event Liquor Permit Application for Cherry Hills Country Club 
at 4125 S. University Blvd. for September 1-15, 2014 
 
Mayor Tisdale noted that this item had been removed because the Municipal Code 
provides that if no objections are filed, in this case, by close of business yesterday, the 
application can be dealt with administratively. 
 
Public Hearing – George W. Calkins Trust Subdivision (5100 E. Quincy Avenue) 
Preliminary Plat Review 
 
Director Zuccaro explained that the preliminary plat proposed to subdivide 17.9 acres 
zoned R-1 on the southeast corner of East Quincy Avenue and South Dahlia Street. 
The property was surrounded by R-1 and R-4 residents and Arapahoe Tennis Club to 
the southwest. A private road went through the property from north to south. Review of 
the proposal began in 2011. A sketch plat was reviewed by the Parks, Trails and 
Recreation Commission (PTRC) and by the Planning and Zoning Commission (P&Z) in 
2011 to give the applicant preliminary feedback before the preliminary plat was 
reviewed. Director Zuccaro noted that in order to address questions related to 
ownership of the private road that transects the subdivision the application review was 
on hold pending legal proceedings until August of 2013. The preliminary plat was then 
reviewed by the PTRC at a meeting on January 9, 2014 for conformance with the City’s 
open space land dedication requirement and Master Plan. P&Z held a public hearing 
February 25, 2014 that was continued to March 25, 2014 to review the full application. 
Both bodies made conditional recommendations to Council for approval. Director 
Zuccaro noted that after the preliminary plat is approved by Council the third and final 
step of the review process is a final plat presented to Council at a regular meeting with 
no public hearing required. He noted that tonight was Council’s opportunity to discuss 
the proposal in detail. 
 
Director Zuccaro explained that the applicant proposed to subdivide the land into seven 
lots each with a minimum gross lot area of 2.5 acres to conform with the R-1 zone 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

4 

district. The corresponding open space land dedication would be 1.34 acres, which the 
applicant proposed to be divided between a trail connection easement from Quincy 
Avenue south via the private road and then west via the southern boundary of the 
subdivision to Dahlia Street, plus two pocket parks. The applicant proposed more 
restrictive building envelopes and heights than the City’s standards in order to preserve 
view corridors. Fencing would be open rail along Quincy Avenue. Access for all seven 
lots would be from existing roads. Retention ponds would be constructed. 
 
Director Zuccaro explained that PTRC’s review of the application focused on 
conformance of the proposal with the City Code, the Master Plan, and the Blue Ribbon 
Panel Report. At their January 9, 2014 meeting PTRC voted four to one to recommend 
approval of the preliminary plat with four conditions: the vegetation along Quincy 
Avenue between the property line and the fence would be limited to six feet in height; 
the pocket park along the private road would be moved slightly to the north to enhance 
the view corridor; the pocket park in the southwest corner of the subdivision would be 
moved to the northeast corner; and the fencing along Quincy Avenue would be limited 
to split rail type fencing. Director Zuccaro indicated that these conditions had been met 
in the preliminary plat presented to Council tonight. 
 
Director Zuccaro explained that P&Z had voted three to one to recommend approval 
with six conditions: the fence along Quincy Avenue would not exceed five feet in height, 
shall be split rail or dimensional, and shall be comprised of a maximum of 40% material; 
Lot 4 and Lot 5 would have their front yards along Quincy Avenue in order to have the 
front setback along Quincy Avenue and the building envelope of Lot 4 would be 
adjusted; the open space in the southwest corner of the subdivision be relocated to the 
northeast corner; the details of the fence along Quincy Avenue would be included in the 
subdivision improvement agreement summary letter; an updated cost estimate would be 
provided; and the required Xcel Energy dry utility easement would be included on the 
final plat. Director Zuccaro noted that the intent of including the fence along Quincy 
Avenue as a subdivision improvement was to ensure a uniform fence design across the 
north subdivision boundary. In lieu of including the fence as a subdivision improvement, 
the applicant proposed that the fence design be specified on the plat and then require 
the fence to be built and maintained by each individual property owner when each home 
is built. 
 
Director Zuccaro explained that staff found the applicant had met the design criteria 
outlined in Article V of the Subdivision Regulations of the Municipal Code.  Staff found 
that the subdivision proposal met the design provisions by preserving view corridors 
through restrictions on landscaping and fencing and the dedication of trail and open 
space areas. The applicant proposed that two of the lots have direct access to Quincy 
Avenue, and staff requested that the applicant provide 25-foot clear sight triangles for 
the driveways onto Quincy Avenue, which would also cross the Quincy Avenue trail, 
and the same clear sight triangle for any other driveways crossing a trail easement 
proposed within the subdivision. With the clear sight triangle, staff was supportive of the 
driveway access proposal. The Municipal Code requires that all new utilities shall be 
underground, but the Code does not require undergrounding of existing utilities. The 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

5 

proposal met the recreation easement design principles which state that the object is to 
provide safe, attractive routes to connect all parts of the City to the High Line Canal. 
Staff believed that the proposed trail easement alignment meets the intent of this 
principle. 
 
Director Zuccaro noted that the City Engineer had reviewed the plat and recommended 
approval. He added that written notice of tonight’s public hearing was mailed by the 
applicant via certified mail to surrounding property owners within 500 feet of the 
subdivision at least ten days prior to the hearing date; a notice sign was posted on the 
property facing Quincy Avenue; notice was published in the April 17, 2014 issue of the 
Villager Newspaper; and notice was posted on the City notice board and website.  
 
Director Zuccaro indicated that the applicant had met all conditions from the PTRC and 
P&Z except for including the fence along Quincy Avenue in the subdivision 
improvement agreement, and staff was satisfied with the applicant’s plan to the fence in 
the plat. He indicated that staff recommended approval with the one condition that the 
required Xcel Energy dry utility easement was included on the final plat. 
 
Councilor Griffin asked why Lots 5 and 6 did not include a sight triangle for their 
driveways. 
 
Director Zuccaro explained that the plat only showed the sight triangles that were above 
and beyond the normal City Code requirements, which were only required when a 
driveway crosses a trail, and that all driveways would have at least standard sight 
triangles. 
 
Councilor Griffin asked how the vegetation height restrictions would be monitored and 
enforced. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that they would be included on the final plat, in the subdivision 
improvement agreement, and in the HOA covenants. He explained that staff could 
enforce the vegetation height restrictions based on the subdivision improvement 
agreement but would likely only address issues on a complaint basis. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart asked if the HOA could be charged with enforcing the 
vegetation height restrictions. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that the HOA could enforce the restrictions based on the HOA 
covenants. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart asked about the retention ponds. 
 
City Engineer Carmann explained that the ponds were a unique system of retention with 
release. They would discharge the historic amount of stormwater while retaining the 
developed run-off. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

6 

Mayor Pro Tem Stewart asked about the depth of the ponds. 
 
City Engineer Carmann replied that the proposal had not gone into that amount of detail 
yet but that he did not expect the depth to be unusual. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart asked how stormwater would drain from the ponds. 
 
City Engineer Carmann replied it would drain through a controlled outlet from the bottom 
of the pond. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart asked why the trail easement had been proposed for the south 
side of the subdivision instead of the north side. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that Quincy Avenue trail already existed on the north side and 
PTRC had requested in 2011 that the applicant consider a trail going through the 
subdivision. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf asked how the size of the sight triangles was determined. 
 
City Engineer Carmann replied that standard engineering criteria was used based on 
the intersection and speed limits and was largely at the engineer’s discretion. He 
explained that in this case the City had used the minimum standard for safe conditions. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf asked if there were height restrictions for landscaping in the sight 
triangles. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that there was a thirty inch height restriction for landscaping in 
sight triangles. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf asked about the enforceability of the fence design along Quincy 
Avenue. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that the City would be able to enforce the fence design based 
on the design standards being included in the subdivision improvement agreement and 
the final plat. Additionally the HOA could enforce the fence design based on the 
inclusion of the standards in the HOA covenants. 
 
Councilor A. Brown asked about the view corridor from the pocket parks west over the 
western-most lot, Lot 1. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that the difference in elevation and distance from the building 
envelope of Lot 1 contributed to preserving mountain views from the pocket parks. He 
noted that PTRC had requested that the pocket park along the private road in the 
middle of the subdivision be moved slightly north from its originally proposed location in 
order to take more advantage of the view across the southern part of Lot 1. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

7 

Mayor Tisdale noted that the City could enforce the fencing and landscaping standards 
based on their inclusion in the subdivision improvement agreement and the plat; the 
HOA could enforce these standards based on their inclusion in the HOA covenants; and 
a third party could potentially take action based on the plat which would be recorded 
with Arapahoe County. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart asked about the trail going from the private road west to one of 
the retention ponds. 
 
Director Zuccaro clarified that it was a drainage easement rather than a trail. 
 
Councilor K. Brown noted that there was currently an off-street trail along Quincy 
Avenue and an on-street trail on Dahlia Street. She asked about the decision to create 
an off-street trail along Dahlia Street as part of the land dedication. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that off-street trails were preferred when possible and this was 
an opportunity to create an off-street trail on Dahlia Street. 
 
Councilor K. Brown asked why the existing trail connectivity was being duplicated with 
the proposed trail along the private road and along the southern boundary of the 
subdivision. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that the trails through the subdivision would be an alternative to 
busy roads and would provide a scenic trail option for residents. 
 
Councilor K. Brown noted that the trail on the southern border of the subdivision would 
be twenty feet wide with fences on either side. 
 
Keith Neale, Koelbel and Company, representative for the applicant, thanked Director 
Zuccaro for his thorough explanation. He noted that this had been a long process with a 
lot of input from the PTRC and P&Z, and he hoped to have the opportunity to respond to 
any concerns raised during tonight’s public hearing as well as any questions or 
concerns from Council. He explained that the Calkins had owned and resided on the 
property since 1954. He clarified that this was not a zoning case but rather a complex 
platting exercise. He noted that the applicant had worked long and hard with PTRC and 
P&Z, and that there had been a hiatus in the application process to resolve the private 
road issue. He indicated that PTRC had visited the property to see how it fit in with 
Quincy Avenue. He stated that the applicant had taken all of PTRC’s concerns into 
consideration and the application had been approved by PTRC. He explained that P&Z 
had also had numerous changes for the applicant, and he believed the applicant had 
made concessions above and beyond the zoning code because it was the right thing to 
fit into the Village neighborhood. He indicated that the applicant had fully complied with 
PTRC and P&Z and had gone above and beyond the requirements. He indicated that 
the application met the vision of the Master Plan by maintaining the Village’s low-density 
and semi-rural character, preserving view corridors and vistas while respecting personal 
property rights, and preserving open space and scenic views. He added that the 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

8 

application met the vision of the Blue Ribbon Panel Report by preserving trails and view 
corridors. He noted that the applicant had considered all these aspects in their initial 
planning and it had been taken to a higher level with PTRC and P&Z. He indicated that 
the preliminary plat presented to Council tonight was the result of a collaborative effort. 
He stated that the plan was responsible and thoughtful, preserved the vision of the 
Village, and conformed to the subdivision code. He requested that City Council approve 
the preliminary plat. 
 
Jeff Vogel, Vogel & Associates, representative for the applicant, presented a chronology 
of the plans for the subdivision and indicated that the principles of semi-rural character 
and preservation of view corridors had been present from the beginning. He explained 
that the applicant had not wanted to re-grade the property but rather incorporate the 
natural features of the property. He noted that in the early stages of the project the 
applicant had reached out to neighbors and had taken their concerns into consideration, 
including the trail connectivity to the south of the property. He reviewed the changes 
that had occurred as a result of PTRC and P&Z’s conditions. 
 
Councilor K. Brown indicated that she appreciated the changes that had been made 
and acknowledged the principals incorporated into the original plan. She questioned the 
distance from the border of the northeast pocket park to that lot’s building envelope, Lot 
7. 
 
Mr. Vogel replied that there was twenty feet from the building envelope to the fence that 
would delineate the pocket park. 
 
Councilor K. Brown asked about the square footage of the building envelope for Lot 7. 
 
Mr. Vogel replied it was around an acre. 
 
Councilor K. Brown asked for confirmation that the setback for the building envelope 
was from the property line rather than the edge of the pocket park easement. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that was correct. 
 
Councilor K. Brown noted that because of the easement on that lot the distance 
between the private land and the public pocket park was significantly less on Lot 7 than 
the full property setback. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf asked about the third outlying property. 
 
Buzz Calkins replied that the third outlying property had been purchased. 
 
Mr. Neale added that the two parcels along Quincy Avenue that were not part of this 
subdivision were non-conforming lots. In response to Councilor K. Brown’s comment he 
noted that both PTRC and P&Z had requested that the pocket park be placed in the 
northeast corner of the subdivision. 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

9 

 
Mayor Tisdale opened the Public Hearing at 8:15 p.m. 
 
Phyllis Hayutin, 5094 E. Quincy Avenue, noted that she was here voluntarily and had 
not been asked to come. She indicated that she was a neighbor of the property and was 
in favor of the subdivision. 
 
Murph Hayutin, 5094 E. Quincy Avenue, stated that Director Zuccaro had done a 
wonderful job summarizing the issue. He explained that they lived on the southeast 
corner of the applicant’s land, and had been contacted by the Calkins when they started 
the process. He noted that the Calkins had incorporated his suggestions. He indicated 
that the proposal had no new roads, dedicated open space, and 2.5 acre lots. He noted 
that he was not in favor of additional parks in the City because of the cost of maintaining 
them. He indicated that the subdivision process had been cumbersome, burdensome 
and very costly to the Calkins. He suggested that the Council approve the application as 
quickly as possible. He noted that the applicant and representatives had been wonderful 
to work with. He indicated his approval of the application. 
 
Caroline Kemp, 5350 E. Quincy Avenue, explained that her property formed the entire 
eastern border to the applicant’s property, where she had lived for over 30 years. She 
stated that she had never been contacted by the applicant. She warned that the 
proposal would obliterate her view of the mountains. She noted that the pocket parks 
would not do much to preserve the view, and asked why the trail did not start at the 
northeast pocket park. She warned that the sight triangles for driveways crossing the 
Quincy Avenue trail were not enough to ensure the safety of trail users, and explained 
that her driveway crossed the trail and she had installed a stop sign for guests leaving 
her property and there were still many near-misses because trail users were not 
cautious when crossing driveways. She indicated that she was opposed to the 
application. 
 
Adam Writer, 55 Meade Lane, indicated he was in support of the application and that 
the proposal respected property rights and abided by City codes and regulations. He 
noted there had been many iterations of the application at many meetings in front of 
various bodies, and asked the Council to consider the applicant’s work and efforts. He 
added that while it was impossible to please everyone, the application mitigated as 
many concerns as possible without reducing property rights. 
 
Brent Powers, 5091 Nassau Circle West, commended the Calkins family and Director 
Zuccaro. He explained that he had young children and his family was frequent trail 
users. He noted that the proposed trails would be an improvement for neighbors and 
would be well received by all users. He indicated he was in support of the application 
and noted that the applicant had gone above and beyond the requirements. 
 
Kathryn Springer, 5144 E. Princeton Avenue, indicated she appreciated the careful 
detail given to preserving view corridors, but expressed concern about the fence along 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

10

Quincy Avenue. She noted that her property was on the north side of Quincy Avenue 
and that she would be looking through the fence for her view. 
 
Pete Clute, 4300 S. Dahlia Street, indicated that the Calkins had been very good 
neighbors and he was in favor of the application. He expressed concern about the 
current on-street trail on Dahlia Street because of the hill and excess speed of vehicles, 
and indicated he was in favor of an off-street trail. He stated that the Calkins had gone 
through a lot of trouble and this subdivision was long overdue. He added that he had 
known this land would eventually be subdivided when he had bought his property. He 
indicated that the subdivision was being done responsibly and that the time had come. 
 
Hearing no further comments, Mayor Tisdale closed the Public Hearing at 8:33 p.m. 
 
Mr. Neale replied to Ms. Springer’s concern about the fence along Quincy Avenue by 
noting that it would be an open split rail fence at a maximum of five feet.  
 
Mayor Tisdale added that the proposed preliminary plat showed that the fence would 
have a maximum of four rails, each of which were two feet by six feet, and the fence 
would be at least 60% open. 
 
Mr. Neale confirmed that was correct. He also clarified that the applicant had sent a 
letter to Ms. Kemp as they had to all the neighbors, but that they had not received a 
response. 
 
Councilor K. Brown noted that this was probably the type of property that residents had 
in mind when they asked Council to acquire more open space and it was sad to see it 
developed, but that she recognized it was privately owned and the owners had the right 
to develop it. She added that she appreciated the applicant’s diligence, consideration, 
and compromise during the process. She indicated that she had one remaining concern 
related to distance between the building envelope and the pocket park easement in Lot 
71 in the northeast corner of the subdivision. She noted that because the pocket park 
had been moved to its current location after the last P&Z hearing its proximity to the 
building envelope had not, perhaps, been thoroughly discussed. She noted that there 
was a general issue in the City with small parcels of public land being perceived as 
extensions of private land. She expressed concern that a home could be built fifteen 
feet away from the pocket park which could make the public feel unwelcome in that 
park. She noted that reducing the building envelope slightly would not diminish the lot 
value, and suggested that the setback on that side of the lot be increased. She added 
that if the pocket park was not welcoming to the public then its benefit to the City was 
significantly reduced. She concluded that this was her only concern and she was aware 
that this was a late point in the process but this was the only opportunity to bring up her 
concern. 
 
Councilor Griffin indicated he was amazed at the length and depth of the examination of 
the proposal, and applauded Director Zuccaro and City staff. He noted that the 
application was well vetted by PTRC and P&Z and had gone through many iterations. 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

11

He stated that the Calkins were wonderful citizens and it was time to approve the 
application. He endorsed the proposal. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart indicated that the subdivision process might be long but was 
important in protecting the character and vision of the Village. He added that although 
the process was expensive and cumbersome it improved the value of the lots he 
thought it likely that the changes would increase the attractiveness and value of the 
property. He noted his approval of PTRC’s recommendation to reorient the lots 
bordering Quincy Avenue in order to have the larger setback on that side, and indicated 
he believed the open fence was an goodattractive solution, and one that might be 
emulated in other new developments. He stated that he appreciated the landowner’s 
intentionefforts. 
 
Councilor A. Brown indicated that based on the record included with the staff memo it 
was clear that PTRC and P&Z had spent a lot of time and effort thinking through the 
application and providing detailed and specific input to which the applicant had been by 
and large responsive. He noted that the proposed off-street trails and duplication of trail 
connectivity followed a design similar to the rest of the Village. He recognized the need 
for safety considerations where driveways crossed trails and believed the sight triangles 
would be instrumental. He added that the City had other option to enhance safety such 
as posting signs and flashing lights. He noted that the addition of an off-street trail on 
Dahlia Street would be a beneficial safety improvement. He indicated that he was 
concerned about the lack of height restriction for the vegetation on the western side of 
Lot 1 at the very west of the subdivision and the potential effect on the view corridor. He 
added that he agreed with Councilor K. Brown’s concern about the Lot 7 building 
envelope’s proximity to the pocket park in the northeast corner of the subdivision. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf indicated that the arduous and rigorous subdivision process 
protects the public interest. She noted that the view corridors across this subdivision 
were appreciated by everyone moving through the City along Quincy Avenue. She 
commented that Council could further discuss Councilor K. Brown’s concern with the 
northeast building envelope and pocket park. She thanked PTRC and P&Z for being so 
diligent in their review of the proposal and making the Council’s job easier. 
 
Councilor Roswell thanked PTRC, P&Z and Director Zuccaro for their work on this 
proposal, and applauded the Calkins for their collaborations with the commissions. 
 
Mayor Tisdale reiterated that the applicant’s collaboration was admirable. He noted that 
the applicant had good communication with their neighbors in general. 
 
Applicant Buzz Calkins, 14 Cherry Lane Drive, responded to Councilor A. Brown’s 
concern by explaining that the property on the other side of Dahlia Street from the 
subdivision had a berm with vegetation that was not height restricted, and that because 
of the elevation change of the land they had determined that restricting the height of the 
vegetation on the western border of the subdivision would not improve the view corridor. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

12

Mr. Neale added that someone looking west would be looking at the horizon rather than 
the ground, and that having high vegetation on the west side of the subdivision would 
not change the plane of view. He went on to address Councilor K. Brown’s concern and 
explained that the applicant was instructed to locate the pocket park at its current 
northeast location by P&Z. He noted that the applicant imagined this would be a passive 
park and would prefer to keep the building envelope as it was now. He indicated that it 
was unlikely a home would be built in the northeast corner of the building envelope. He 
added that the applicant had already restricted building envelopes and setbacks in the 
subdivision more than required by the City Code. 
 
Mayor Tisdale noted that the City often demarcated park boundaries with bollards. 
 
Councilor K. Brown indicated that the plat showed a fence between the pocket park and 
the private property. 
 
Mr. Neale added that this fence would be the same open rail fence as along Quincy 
Avenue. 
 
Mr. Calkins warned that the plan was like a jigsaw puzzle, and a small change in one 
area would affect other areas. 
 
Mr. Neale indicated that this had been a detailed and collaborative process, the 
applicant appreciated the input, the process had been difficult and enlightening, the plan 
meets the goals of the Village, and the applicant was proud of the plan. 
 
Mr. Calkins noted that while he can see both sides of the issue and is also saddened to 
see large areas of open space be developed he believed the proposed plan was a 
responsible one. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart indicated that Council’s task was limited to determining if the 
proposal complies with the Code. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart moved, seconded by Councilor Griffin to approve the George 
W. Calkins Trust Preliminary Plat based on the findings and analysis in the May 6, 2014 
staff memorandum, including all the findings contained in that memorandum and 
conclusions of compliance with the Municipal Code, with the following condition: The 
applicant shall include the required Xcel Energy dry utility easement on the final plat. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
REPORTS 
 
Members of City Council 
 
Councilor K. Brown reported that she would attend the Centennial Airport Noise 
Roundtable meeting tomorrow. 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

13

 
Councilor Griffin thanked staff, Council, and Mayor Tisdale for their condolences on the 
passing of his mother. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart reported that the Boy Scouts were available to help staff during 
the annual Spring Clean Up. 
 
Councilor Roswell reported that he was impressed with the subdivision process. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf reported that the Public Art Commission would hold its annual 
fundraiser on June 1st and encouraged Council members to purchase tickets. She noted 
that guest speaker Lino Tagliapietra was a world-renowned glass artist. 
 
Councilor A. Brown reported that he and Councilor VanderWerf would be conducting 
interviews of applicants for the Board of Adjustment and Appeals (BOAA) and PTRC 
and hoped to make recommendations to Council at the May 20th meeting. He noted that 
the City had received an encouraging number of applications. He also reported that the 
Utility Line Undergrounding Study Committee would meet next week for an open 
conversation reviewing all the information collected so far. 
 
Mayor Tisdale requested that the Committee discuss the section of the Code that did 
not require new developments to underground existing utility lines. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart indicated that the Committee was discussing that issue. He 
added that the Committee was not likely to recommend referring issues related to 
undergrounding utilities for vote by citizens in November 2014 undergrounding utility 
lines would probably not be on the 2014 ballot because more time was needed to 
research and prepare the issue. 
 
Councilor A. Brown brought up the issue of installing a traffic signal at Belleview Avenue 
and Glenmoor Drive. He indicated that Belleview Avenue was one of the City’s major 
thoroughfares and perhaps the biggest challenge with congestion and safety. He noted 
that the City of Greenwood Village and the Glenmoor Country Club Board were both 
supportive of the idea. He indicated that Greenwood Village was interested in a 50/50 
split of the cost with Cherry Hills Village, and that Glenmoor Country Club was willing to 
pay 25%, so that the City would only have to pay 25%. He noted that a warrant study 
would have to be done for CDOT prior to the signal being approved. He added that a 
signal at Glenmoor Drive would also help the entrance to Cherry Hills Farm by creating 
gaps in traffic on Belleview Avenue. He noted the signal could have a sensor so it would 
stay green for traffic on Belleview Avenue unless triggered, and be synchronized with 
the signal at University Boulevard. He suggested that Council seriously consider 
including this cost in the City’s capital costs for 2015. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart asked what the cost would be to the City. 
 
Mayor Tisdale replied that the City’s portion would be $200,000. 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

14

 
Councilor A. Brown noted that there had been a fatality at that intersection several years 
ago. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart indicated the fatality had been six years ago. 
 
Councilor Griffin agreed that an on-demand signal was a step in the right direction but 
asked that staff also follow up on having CDOT paint Xs in front of Cherry Ridge and 
Cherry Hills Farm. 
 
Councilor Roswell noted that when a signal was discussed before the neighbors on 
Franklin Street were not in favor because they were concerned with an increase in cut-
through traffic. 
 
Councilor A. Brown replied that concern had not come up this time. 
 
Mayor’s Report 
 
Mayor Tisdale reported that this week was National Physical Education and Sport Week 
and May was National Physical Fitness and Sport Month. He reported that he had 
attended a DRCOG Board meeting April 16th; he attended Carnival at Cherry Hills 
Village Elementary School to celebrate the successful conclusion of the Help Ryan 
Dunne campaign; he attended the DRCOG awards ceremony on April 23rd; he and 
other DRCOG Board members had lunch with CDOT Executive Director Don Hunt on 
April 24th; he attended the Centennial Airport Noise Roundtable on April 24th; he 
attended the Arapahoe B-Cycle fundraising event on April 24th; he attended the 5280 
Professional Alliance wine tasting in the Buell Mansion neighborhood on April 30th; he 
attended the Cherry Creek North BID VIP reception on May 1st; he attended the 
Governor’s Holocaust Remembrance at Temple Emmanuel on May 1st; he attended the 
Cherry Hills Village Elementary School fundraiser for Wish on Wheels on May 4th and 
would attend the bike-building event on May 12th; he hosted the South Metro Mayors 
Munch today at Pino’s Pizzeria; he would attend the Denver Union Station gala on 
Thursday and the ribbon cutting on Friday; he would attend the CDOT Open House on 
May 12th; he would attend the Kent Denver School Yates Pavilion dedication on May 
13th; he would attend the Denver First Church groundbreaking ceremony on May 18th. 
He thanked Councilors VanderWerf and A. Brown for their work on the recruitment 
process for BOAA and PTRC. He noted that terms ended this month. He stated that 
CDOT Regional Manager Tony DeVito would attend the May 20th Council meeting. He 
asked Council to consider reimbursing his costs to attend the CML Annual Conference 
in Breckenridge in June with Deputy City Manager Goldie. 
 
There were no objections from Council. 
 
City Manager & Staff 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

15

City Manager Patterson reported that through the efforts of CML the bill to ban photo 
red light systems was defeated. He congratulated Director Proctor on successful 
completion of the 2013 audit. He reported that the Police Department had collected 123 
pounds of drugs at the April 23rd Drug Take Back event. He reported that the Police 
Department had completed its re-accreditation process and would make a presentation 
to Council in June. He congratulated HR Analyst Barlow on the completion of the annual 
CIRSA loss control audit. He reported that the Quincy Farm Visioning Committee would 
bring their final report to PTRC and then to City Council in the near future. He indicated 
that staff had been notified that the Cherry Hills Land Preserve planned to hold their 
annual Barn Tour September 6th and 7th, which would overlap with the BMW Golf 
Tournament. He noted that he and Mayor Tisdale would meet with members of the 
Land Preserve to discuss the impact of the BMW Golf Tournament on parking etc. 
 
Finance Department Annual Report 
Director Proctor presented the Finance Department’s mission statement, “Embrace 
sound financial policies that continually evaluate the cost and benefit of current and 
potential services in the City and that ensure a balanced budget.” She reviewed the staff 
members of the department and their functions. She presented a history of the General 
Fund balance and statistics on Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable for 2013. 
She noted the department’s accomplishments and goals. She reviewed the 
responsibilities, accomplishments and goals for the City Clerk and the Court Clerk. 
 
HR Analyst Barlow presented her position’s responsibilities and provided 2013 statistics 
on claims and employment. She presented a flow chart of new hires and separations, 
and noted her accomplishments and goals. 
 
Councilor Griffin asked about putting total compensation statements and payroll 
information online for employees. 
 
HR Analyst Barlow explained that this information was currently given to each employee 
on paper and that it would be complicated to link all the various programs for health 
insurance, life insurance, disability, etc. to an online system. 
 
Councilor Roswell agreed it was difficult to gather information from separate providers 
into an online format for employees. He indicated that total contribution statements were 
common on an annual basis. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart asked about the City’s Recreation Reimbursement Program. 
 
Director Proctor replied that the City had been under budget in 2013 for the program, 
but did not have a system set up to track the number of residents receiving 
reimbursements. 
 
Mayor Tisdale thanked Director Proctor and HR Analyst Barlow for their work. 



Draft Draft Draft 

May 6, 2014 
City Council 
 

16

 
City Attorney 
 
No report. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart moved, seconded by Councilor Roswell to proceed into 
Executive Session pursuant to C.R.S. Sec. 24-6-402(4)(b) for purposes of receiving 
legal advice from the City Attorney on specific legal questions related to potential 
litigation concerning the City’s short term rental ordinance and immediately upon 
conclusion of the Executive Session to stand adjourned. 
 
The following votes were recorded: 
 

Katy Brown   yes 
Mark Griffin   yes 
Russell Stewart  yes 
Scott Roswell  yes 
Klasina VanderWerf  yes 
Alex Brown   yes 

 
Vote on Executive Session:  6 ayes.  0 nays.  The motion carried. 
 
The regular meeting adjourned at 10:05 p.m. 
 
The executive session adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Douglas M. Tisdale, Mayor 
 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Laura Smith, City Clerk 



Item 7b 

Resolution 5, Series 2014 
Page 1 of 2    

RESOLUTION 5      INTRODUCED BY: 
SERIES 2014       SECONDED BY: 

 
 

A RESOLUTION 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE 
CONCERNING THE APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS 
TO THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AND APPEALS 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 8.2 of the City of Cherry Hills Village City Charter requires that 
members of the Board of Adjustment and Appeals be appointed by the Council for overlapping 
terms of three years.  Each member shall be a taxpaying elector, and, in addition, shall have 
resided in the area comprising the City at the time of appointment for at least three years 
immediately preceding the date of his appointment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the term of appointment of Board members Kerry Sullivan, Jamie Seitz, 
and Suzy Love expire on the third Tuesday of May 2014; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Mr. Sullivan has served one, three-year term on the Board of 
Adjustment and Appeals and is eligible for reappointment to a second, three-year term; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Mr. Sullivan has expressed a desire to be reappointed for an additional 
term; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to re-appoint Mr. Sullivan to the Board of 
Adjustment and Appeals for a second, three-year term; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Mr. Seitz has served two, three-year terms and Ms. Love has served 
three, three-year terms on the Board of Adjustment and Appeals; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council has established a policy to hold a recruitment process 
when board and commission members have completed two, three-year terms;  
 
 WHEREAS, applications to fill the two positions on the Board were reviewed by the 
City Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to appoint William Rapson and Jennifer Allen to 
new terms on the Board. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE THAT: 
 
 
 The City Council hereby makes the following appointments to the City of Cherry Hills 
Village Board of Adjustment and Appeals: 
 
 
 



Item 7b 

Resolution 5, Series 2014 
Page 2 of 2    

Name         Term Expires 
 
 Kerry Sullivan       3rd Tuesday in May 2017 
 
 William Rapson   3rd Tuesday in May 2017 
                
 Jennifer Allen    3rd Tuesday in May 2017  
 
 
This Resolution shall be effective immediately. 
 
 

Introduced, passed and adopted at the 
regular meeting of City Council this __th day 
of _____, 2014, by a vote of _ yes and _ no. 

 
 
 
                   
 
 
(SEAL)              
                  Douglas M. Tisdale, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Laura Smith, City Clerk      Linda C. Michow, City Attorney 



Item 7c 

Resolution 6, Series 2014 
Page 1 of 2    

RESOLUTION 6      INTRODUCED BY: 
SERIES 2014       SECONDED BY: 

 
 

A RESOLUTION 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE 
CONCERNING THE APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS 

TO THE PARKS, TRAILS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Ordinance 02-12 established the Parks, Trails and Recreation 
Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 3.1 of the City of Cherry Hills Village City Charter authorizes the 
City Council to “delegate to board and commissions…such functions, powers and authority of 
the City as it deems proper and advisable”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 2-8-30 of the City Municipal Code requires that the Parks, Trails 
and Recreation Commission shall consist of seven (7) members: one (1) from each Council 
district; and one member appointed on an at-large basis; provided, however that if the Council is 
not reasonably able to appoint one member from each Council district the Council may appoint 
one or more members of the commission on an at-large basis.  On the date of appointment, 
each district member shall be a registered elector of the City for at least three (3) years 
immediately preceding the date of appointment.  Each district member shall be a resident of the 
district on the date of appointment and throughout his or her term of office; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the term of appointment of Commission members Mike Gallagher, Bill 
Lucas, Jeffrey Ferrell and Karen Barsch expire on the third Tuesday of May 2014; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Mr. Gallagher has served a partial term and Mr. Lucas has served one, 
three-year term on the Commission and are eligible for reappointment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Mr. Gallagher and Mr. Lucas have expressed a desire to be reappointed 
for an additional term; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to re-appoint Mr. Gallagher and Mr. Lucas to 
the Parks, Trails and Recreation Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Mr. Ferrell and Ms. Barsch have each served two, three-year terms on 
the Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council has established a policy to hold a recruitment process 
when board and commission members have completed two, three-year terms;  
 
 WHEREAS, applications to fill the two positions on the Commission were reviewed 
by the City Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to appoint Rob Ganger and Nina Itin to new 
terms on the Commission. 
 



Item 7c 

Resolution 6, Series 2014 
Page 2 of 2    

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE THAT: 
 
 
 The City Council hereby makes the following appointments to the City of Cherry Hills 
Village Parks, Trails and Recreation Commission: 
 
 
 

Name  District  Term Expires 
 
 Mike Gallagher     4   3rd Tuesday in May 2017 
 
 Bill Lucas  2   3rd Tuesday in May 2017 
                
 Rob Ganger  1   3rd Tuesday in May 2017  
 
 Nina Itin  4   3rd Tuesday in May 2017  
 
 
 
This Resolution shall be effective immediately. 
 
 

Introduced, passed and adopted at the 
regular meeting of City Council this __th day 
of _____, 2014, by a vote of _ yes and _ no. 

 
 
 
                   
 
 
(SEAL)              
                  Douglas M. Tisdale, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Laura Smith, City Clerk      Linda C. Michow, City Attorney 



Item 7d 

Resolution 7, Series 2014 
Page 1 of 2    

RESOLUTION 7      INTRODUCED BY:  
SERIES 2014       SECONDED BY:  
 
 

A RESOLUTION  
OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE 
REAPPOINTING DOUGLAS SMOOKE  
TO THE PUBLIC ART COMMISSION 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 3.1 of the City of Cherry Hills Village City Charter authorizes the 
City Council to “delegate to board and commissions…such functions, powers and authority of 
the City as it deems proper and advisable”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Resolution 6-11 established the Public Art Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Resolution 6-11 states the Commission shall consist of up to five (5) voting 
members, including a Council representative. All members are appointed by the City Council. 
Members must be residents of Cherry Hills Village; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the term of appointment of Commissioner Ann Polumbus will expire on 
the third Tuesday of May 2014; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Ms. Polumbus has served one, three-year term on the Commission and 
is eligible for reappointment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Ms. Polumbus has expressed a desire to be reappointed for an 
additional term; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to reappoint Commissioner Polumbus to a new 
term on the Public Art Commission. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE THAT: 
 
 The City Council hereby makes the following appointment to the City of Cherry Hills 
Public Art Commission: 
 
 Name                 Term Expires 
 
 Ann Polumbus     May 2017 
 
 
This Resolution shall be effective immediately. 
 

Introduced, passed and adopted at the 
regular meeting of City Council this __th day 
of ____, 2014, by a vote of _ yes and _ no. 

 
 



Item 7d 

Resolution 7, Series 2014 
Page 2 of 2    

(SEAL) 
 
 
 
              
                  Douglas M. Tisdale, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
              
Laura Smith, City Clerk      Linda C. Michow, City Attorney 
 




















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































	Item 9a - Major Event Permit etc for the BMW Golf Championship.pdf
	CHV Permit Resubmittal 4.30.14(1).pdf
	First Half of Permit
	SKMBT_C65214043016010
	SKMBT_C65214043016050

	Traffic Plan
	Second Half



